
Lyme Planning Board Minutes 
January/25/2018 

 
Board Members and Staff Present: John Stadler, Chair;  Tim Cook, Vice Chair;  C Jay Smith, 
Select Board Representative; Vicki Smith, Member;  Eric Furstenberg,  Member; Amber Boland 
Alternate; David Robbins, Planning and Zoning Administrator.  
 
Board Members Absent:  
 
Members of the Public Present: Jonathan Voegele, Chris Ramsden, Sue Mackenzie, Mike Smith, 
Hoyt Alverson, Marianne Alverson, Aaron Rich, Bret Ryan, Sue Ryan, Wilks McClave, David 
Roby, Nils Johnson, K Johnson, Cathie Hopper, David Perlman, Kevin Sahr, Rusty Keith, Rich 
Brown 
 
 
 
Item 1: Public Hearing – Proposed Zoning Amendment, Section 8.27. 
 
Current Language: 
 
8.27 Replacement of a Non-conforming Structure.  
Nothing herein shall prevent the replacement of a non-conforming structure so long as the 
replacement does not result in a new or increased violation. 
 
Proposed Language:  
 
8.27 Replacement of a Non-conforming Structure.  
Any non-residential or multi-dwelling replacement requires Site Plan Review prior to the issuance 
of a Zoning Permit. Otherwise nothing herein shall prevent the replacement of a non-conforming 
structure so long as the replacement does not result in a new or increased violation 
 
John opened the public hearing for changes to section 8.27. He read aloud the current language and 
the proposed language.  
He asked if there was any comment or discussion. There was none.  
John moved to send the amendment to the 2018 Town Meeting for a vote. 
Eric seconded the motion. 
John called for a vote.  
John, Tim, Vicki and Eric voted to approve the motion. Jay voted against.  
 
Item 2: Meeting with the Lyme Community Development Committee. (This is a 
summary of the roughly 90 minute discussion. For the most accurate record of the meeting, 
there is currently a video posted on Youtube under Rich Brown’s account entitled, “Lyme 
Planning Board 25 Jan 2018”) 

 
John opened the meeting by welcoming the members of the Lyme Community Development 
Committee (LCDC) to the table. Introductions were made. 
Nils Johnson, the LCDC Chair, said that the Sue Mackenzie felt the Town needs $400,000 a year 
to balance the budget going forward and the LCDC’s charge includes finding ways to expand the 
tax base to meet that need. That amount reflects a 4.4% annual increase. There was talk of 
expanding the commercial district. 

 



Nils explained that he is a lawyer with a background in development who has been successful 
helping guide Canfield, Ohio, a town with a reputation of being hostile to business through the 
process of bringing in significant commercial development to lower the tax rate. He said that, in 
addition to Lyme’s reputation of being hostile to business, there are other serious constraints to 
development: lack of a sanitary sewer system and water resources, the mountainous structure of 
the region, the lack of adequate internet and cell service, the unpaved roads and the zoning     
ordinance. He felt that given Lyme’s small size it is unlikely to get a sewer system and that 
Route 10 is really the only place where substantial development can realistically occur. He also 
felt that businesses were more likely to go to Hanover because of their superior infrastructure as 
well as for their fire and police departments. 

 
Tim said that there is a great amount of acreage, essentially the entire west side of the 
Commercial District, that has not been used for business, so why should Lyme expand its 
commercial zone when it is underutilized as is? Vicki said there are a lot of commercial assets 
just north of town that should be promoted and utilized. Nils said that wasn’t enough. Vicki 
wanted to know what was enough. 

 
The LCDC felt that to encourage more than cottage industry in Lyme, the Town needed an 
ombudsman and had to use their website to create a more inviting atmosphere for businesses. 
Extending Advanced Transit bus service into Lyme would also be helpful. 

 
Mike Smith, another member of the LCDC, said that he had a business a little south of Lyme in 
Hanover for many years because of their superior services. Lyme’s limited power supply, poor 
phone service and water capacity cannot compete and that it is this reality that truly defines 
Lyme’s business area as limited 
to small businesses and cottage industry. Mike continued that the real key challenge is Lyme’s 
poor internet service. Board members strongly agreed, saying that this was an oft repeated 
complaint. Sue said there could be a solution available by 2019. That was received as very 
good news by all. 
Mike also discussed that the 4.4% rise in taxes was fairly consistent with the previous increases 
over the past decade which he estimated at 4.1%. 

 
John said it was frustrating to hear the LCDC say that Lyme has a reputation of being hostile to 
business given that the Planning Board just approved a Site Plan Review that was seen as too 
generous to a business and elicited a lawsuit. He said its important to realize that complaints 
come from both sides of the issue. David Robbins pointed out that in both the current case and 
the Mill Gardens case each Board approved the business plans only to be sued. 

 
John continued that one of the prime objectives of the Master Plan was to see Lyme’s downtown 
area revitalized. There are now three great restaurants and a very lively downtown. He couldn’t 
remember a business enterprise being rejected and recalled that one business owner’s hearing 
resulted in their remaining in Town thanks to Vicki’s knowledge of what space was available. 
The owner expressed great appreciation. John suggested that the perception of hostility towards 
business might very well not line up with reality. 

 
Amber welcomed the discussion and said that she has been before other Boards in the area as 
somebody trying to start a business and finds the Lyme Planning Board far more reasonable and 
well run. 

 
Nils said it wasn’t the Planning Board, but rather the lawsuits that created this view. John said 
that the law was such that people were entitled to sue. Nils and Jonathan felt that the Master 



Plan and ordinance should be changed to make it harder for people to sue. Vicki said the Master 
Plan comes out of the Visioning process and can’t be arbitrarily changed like that. 

 
Nils said the LCDC wants to hire a consultant to run a Visioning program and stated that they 
have raised $15,000 to do so. He viewed Stuart Arnett favorably. He had met with people from 
PlanNH, the Upper Valley Lake Sunapee Regional Planning Commission and UNH, but felt 
there was too much paperwork, bureaucracy and too many deadline issues. He preferred a 
private consultant. 
Vicki said she works with many of these groups professionally and that they were actually very 
good resources. Nils suggested a Visioning Committee with two members of the LCDC and 
two members of the Planning Board. 



Page 4 of 5 

 
Nils thought that higher density residential development was the more promising path 
for a wider tax base than commercial and that the area should be on Route 10 by the 
Hanover border. He thought anywhere from 12 to 30 condo units at the Pondview 
property could go a long way towards hitting the $400,000 mark. He believed that 
based on the results of Lebanon’s Gile Road development that there wouldn’t be too 
bad an impact on the school. John said that the Board had presented a draft Senior 
Housing article with affordable housing and mixed use components as a starting point 
for the possibility of denser development. 

 
There were also comments from the public. Sue Ryan felt there was too much 
subjective language in the Master Plan and ordinance. Aaron Rich felt that it would be 
hard to get a good return on investment from developing Earl Strout’s building, but 
liked the idea of a micro version of the River Valley Club there. He said such a venture 
is doing well in Fairlee. Rich Brown asked the Board to review several issues including 
the telecommunications ordinance and making the ordinance more friendly to business. 
David Roby, Sr. said that the Town was spending too much and that the tax issue should 
be addressed from that side. 

 
Nils felt Lyme had a choice to make between continuing on as a place trying to 
replicate an 18th century sheep farming village or having some reasonable 
development. The question of defining what is reasonable development was raised. 

 
John said the Board has been working on a Housing Chapter with the idea that a 
Visioning program might follow that informational chapter. He said the LCDC is 
certainly a strong advocate for development in Lyme. The Board needed to consider 
what was discussed tonight and then decide how they think it best to proceed. They 
would relay their thoughts and any follow-up questions to the LCDC. He thanked 
them again and asked that they keep in touch with the Board about any further 
thoughts or ideas. 

 
 
 
Item 3: Acceptance of minutes from January/11/2018 
John moved to accept the minutes as amended by Tim.  
Tim seconded the motion. 
John called for a vote and the motion passed unanimously.  
 
Item 4: Schedule public hearing for tree removal on the Orfordville Rd (A Scenic Road)  
 
The Planning and Zoning Administrator explained that the Highway department has 
approximately 50 trees that they would like to remove from the edge of the Orfordville 
road between the four corners and the Orford Town line. 
 
The Board decided to hold a hearing during their regularly scheduled meeting on 
February 22, 2018 at 7:00 pm in the Lyme Town Offices conference room. Due to the 



Page 5 of 5 

number of trees to be cut, the Board asked the Planning and Zoning Administrator to 
notify, by letter, all the land owners on the Orfordville Road. 
 
Respectfully Submitted  
David A. Robbins 
Lyme Planning and Zoning Administrator.  
 
 


